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Memorandum 
Department of Public Works 
 

 

TO:   Michael O. Geisel, P.E. 
   City Administrator 
 
FROM:  James A. Eckrich, P.E. 
   Public Works Dir. / City Engineer
  
DATE:  February 14, 2019  
  
RE: Chesterfield Valley Storm Water Mater Plan 
 Engineering Services Contract – Thomas and Hutton  
 

 
As you know, the City of Chesterfield contracts with Thomas and Hutton for 
Engineering services related to the Chesterfield Valley Storm Water Mater Plan.  

Thomas and Hutton was originally selected by the City of Chesterfield as the firm 
most qualified to perform these Engineering services in 2003.  Since that time, 

Thomas and Hutton has created and maintained the storm water master plan model 
and provided excellent service to the City of Chesterfield.  Chesterfield Valley 
Stormwater modeling poses significant technical engineering challenges.  When the 

levee was originally re-certified in 1997, the City elected to utilize state of the art 
software, AdICPR (Advanced Interconnected Pond Routing) to model precipitation 

events, ground permeability characteristics and dynamic three dimensional flow 
characteristics.  Prior stormwater models used two dimensional flow and the AdICPR 
software provided a better and more accurate model.  Each and every channel, 

reservoir, and structure in Chesterfield Valley is incorporated into this model.   
 
The City of Chesterfield initially sought recommendations from the software creator 

to identify engineering firms who had extensive experience with the AdICPR product.  
They identified Thomas and Hutton as a premier firm highly experienced in the use of 

their modeling software.  It should be noted that AdICPR’s strength is modeling three 
dimensional flow, in minute time increments.  It should also be noted that the flat 
topographic characteristics of Chesterfield Valley are more similar to coastal 

hydrology than our normal upland relief hydrology.    Thomas and Hutton was 
engaged to create the AdICPR model for Chesterfield Valley and it has been 

continuously updated with each development as the stormwater infrastructure 
changes.  Literally hundreds of hours of professional engineering have been 
incorporated into the model.  Each link, node, reservoir, pipe, and tributary area has 

multiple individual modeling variables which result from engineering judgement.  Not 
only is it imperative that the institutional knowledge be maintained and consistent 
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judgement be employed with each future iteration, it is equally important that the 
responsibility and liability associated with each one of these decisions be maintained.  

 
As detailed in the attached memorandum from Senior Civil Engineer Chris Krueger, 

the City Engineering Staff recommends that we continue using Thomas and Hutton 
for Engineering services related to the Chesterfield Valley Storm Water Master Plan.  
Not only does Thomas and Hutton provide excellent service, there would be 

substantial costs in transferring the storm water model to another firm.  Additionally, 
it is beneficial for the City of Chesterfield to use a firm outside our regional area (T&H 
is located in Savannah, Georgia) as this minimizes the chances for a conflict of 

interest associated with a development.   
 

Please remember that there is no requirement to “bid” Engineering services.  In fact, 
it is a violation of Missouri Law to secure certain professional services (including 
Engineering) through a bidding process.  Thomas and Hutton was previously selected 

as the firm most qualified to perform this service.  Therefore, entering into a new 
contract with Thomas and Hutton would be compliant with both Missouri Law and 

the City’s Purchasing Policy.   
 
Action Recommended 

 
This matter should be forwarded to the Planning and Public Works Committee of City 
Council.  Should the PPW Committee support the Staff recommendation, it should 

recommend to the full City Council approval of a new contract with Thomas and 
Hutton in an amount not to exceed $250,000.  Funding for this contract is provided 

from the Chesterfield Valley Special Projects fund and has no impact on the City’s 
General Fund. 








